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SALIURE T LIEES, 108,

PO.Box 1028 180 Eighth Avenue

GLEN BURNIE, MARYLAND 21061

August 25, 1978

Mr. Albert Stuart, Jr.
Director

State Corporation Ccmmission
Div. of Motor Carrier Taxation
P. O. Box 1159

Richmond, Virginia 23209

Dear Sir:

On Oct. 13, 1977 and Nov. 13, 1977, File No. 68161, I
received from your office copies of Audit Reports for periods
July 1, 1975 to Sept. 30, 1976 and Oct. 1, 1976 to Sept. 30, 1977.

In cach audit report, the first by Mr. Lee E. Gilbert,
Supv. of Refunds, and the second audit by Mr. J. W. Lester, Field
Representative, we were denied our applications for refund.

After receiving these letter:, I contacted Mr. E. H.
Williams, Jr., Executive Vice President, Virginia Highway Users
Assn., Inc., on Dec. 9, 1977, to intervene on my behalf to protest
this denial and, if necessary, to arrange for a hearing. (Copy of
this letter attached.) I was assured by Mr. Williams that your
office was investigating our case and was advised that it was not
necessary to take further action to request a hearing.

Mr. Williams on June 23, 1978, acting on my behalf,
appeared before the three member commission to present my case and
to take whatever action necessary to register my disagreement with
your denial of my request for refund. Again I was assured that the
commission would make a decision in this matter. Therefore, I was
certainly surprised to learn that in your letter to Mr. Lowry
Brooks, Chief Auditor, Maryland Gasoline Tax Division, that our
company "has not responded as to their desires or intents". Mr,
Williams certainly represented to your office my disagreement with
your findings and had the informal hearing with your commission on
June 23, 1978.
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Mr. Gilbert denicd our claim on the basis of refunds on
Maryland gu.arterly returns and Mr. Lester denied our claim on dis-
similarity of laws bctween the two states. Two completely different
approaches with the same result.

Mr. Gilbert failed to take into consideration that our
company paid Maryland State diesel taxes at the time of each purchase
from the supplier. The fact that part of this tax-paid fuel was
used in Pennsylvania made a refund necessary when the quarterly
reports were filed.

Mr. Lester satisfied himsclf that this was the case and
that refund from Maryland was due to fuel purchased in Maryland
being used in other states. He also found that our credit in
Virginia was due to two dedicated tractors, purchasing fuel entirely
in Virginia and we consumed approximately 50% of this fuel in Mary-
land. Mr. Lester recognized in his letter of Nov. 28, 1977 that
we applied for refund for certain cxcess credlts "for Virginia Fuel
burned over Maryland roads".

You raised the question in your letter to Mr. Brooks that
"such cxcess may be refunded if it appears that the applicant has
paid to another State under a lawful requirement of such State a
tax, similar in effect to the tax herein provided, on tax use or
consumption in said state of gasoline or other motor fuel purchased
in Virginia". I submit the Baltimore Tank Lines case rests on this--
that Virginia fuel purchases have been used in Maryland and that
Maryland has collected for their rightful tax due.

I am enclosing Mr. Lester's Nov. 28, 1977 audit letter
which proves this conclusively to be a fact.

Your letter to Mr. Brooks and I quote: "it is my under-
standing in this case that all taxes paid in Maryland by the carrier
was on fuel purchased in your state”.

Mr. Lester verified Southern States Cooperative, Fairfax,
Va. sales slips traced them through to our driver's daily manifest
and was completely satisfied that Virginia fuel was purchased and
that Maryland was paid tax on this fuel used in Maryland.

It certainly should be apparent that each auditor used
a different approach to deny claim - forcing our company into a
position to pay double taxes to Maryland and Virginia. This
should be contrary to any doctrine of law.



It seems apparent that Mr. Williams' presentation to your
office that he was acting on my bchalf has not been accepted as
a formal notice of protest and request for hearing.

This letter will sexve to request a formal hearing befo;;\\\\_
your comm1551on to resolve this matter.

\\\“\\ Mr. Lester and Mr. Gilbert were informed at the time of
the audits that I did not agree with their findings and my reasons
for my disagreement.

I would like to request that both Mr. Lester and Mr. Gilbert
both be present at our hearing.

I would also like to request a copy of what action was
taken at the hearing on June 23, 1978,

Thank you in advance for expediting my request for a hearing.
Very truly yours,
BALTIMORE TANK LINES, INC.

'.--/ e C»\ /7’44-//‘

’Gordon L Westkamp
President

)7

att:
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Application of

BALTIMORE TANX LIMES, INC. ' . ~
180 Eighth Avanug Case No. L-765

P. 0. Box 1028 . .
Glen Burnie, Maryland 21061

For Refumd of Motor Fuel Road Taxes

STIPULATION

-———-——-—-—-—h—-—-——h&w_
*

The following stipulationsvrelevant to this appiicétiqn_are
| agreed to: ' |
Stipulation 1. The amount of ‘the refund at'isSue,fbr'

which applications were timely filed, is $1,967.43.

- -
B

‘ Stipulation 2.. Baltimore Tank Lines's records for the
1 . . : .
i time period in question have been audited by the Virginia Divi-

sion of Motor Carrier Taxation.

! . ) . ..
Stipulation 3. Fuel purchased in Virginia on which the

refund is sought was ‘used in idehtified vehicles (the "dedicated

tractors") on identified mileage in the States of Virginia and

Maryland as verified by the audits.

.|'

1

.
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Stipulation 4. The State of Maryland charged Baltimore
ﬁ Tank Lines under 1ts Road Tax and Motor Carrier Statute w1th the
t mileage traveled in Maryland by the dedicated tractors in comput-

i
|

”

ing Baltimore Tank Lines's motor fuel road tax liability to

Maryland for the time period in question.

Stipulation 5. . The State of Maryland imposes a motor fuel

N road tax at the rate of nine cents a gallon for mileage traveled

on its highways, and the formula used by the State of Maryland

" for computing miles per gallon is the saﬁe as the formula used

I by the State of Virginia;

SwlnLlatlon 6. Total fuel purcbaaeo by Baltlmore Tank
Lines in the State of Maryland for use by vehicles in Maryland .
‘and in Pennsylvanla resulted in excess fuel purchases by Baltlmore<
Tank Llnes 1n the State of Maryland and the payment of refunds

by the State of Maryland to Baltlmore Tank Llnes on its overall

operations.’

A‘KV.NMM Ml—t—'-.\ : -

- Counsel for Applicantd® -

Dated: May 31, 1979. ' . - S |




Psccsr—ry 1M COMMONWEAUTH OF VIRGINIA

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

>

AT RICHMOND, JANUARY 30, 1980

APPLICATION OF

BALTIMORE TANK LINES, INC. : CASE NO. L-765
180 Eight Avenue ' . FINAL ORDER
P.O. Box 1028

Glen Burnie, Maryland 21061

For Refund of Motor Fuel Road Taies

On August 29,

578, ctame Baltimoré Tank.Lines, Inc.
and presénted a petition under §58—529.of the Code of Virginia i
(1950) for a réfund of motor fuel road taxes amodntjng
ﬁo the sum of $2,964.83. On June 4, 1979, a hearing was
held before the Commission and by oraef dated Septémbér’lo, .
1979, the Commission granted a'refund amounting to the .

© sum of $1,967.43. Thereafter,‘it was discovered that a
defect in the order setting said hearing had not provided
‘that adequate service of process be given the Attorneyhh ‘
General of Virginia, and by order dated September.lS;'1979,
the matter was again set for hearing, which‘was conductea
on October 5,'1979, before the full Commiséion, Commissioner
Shannon presiding. Alexander Wellford, Esquire, represented -
the petitioner. ﬁorman K.'Mafshali, Bsquire, représentedr.'
the Attorney General of virginia. Lewis S. Miﬁter, Eéquire,
and Edwardlc. tosh, Esquire; appeared as counsel to the

Commission.



By stipulation protfferad at the hearing conducted
on June 4. 1979, and accepted as part of the reéofd for
purposes of the October 5, 1979, hearing, the applicanﬁ,
by counsel, reduced the smount of the refund sought to
the sum of §1,867.43.

after consideration of the evidencé anad arguments
of counsel, the Commission ié of the opinion and finds
that the patitioner is entitled to a refund of motor fuel
road taxes in the sum of $1,967.43. Accordingly,

IT IS ORDERED that the petition of Baltimore Tank
Lines, Inc. for a refund of $1,967.43 in motor fuel road
taxes.be, and the sam2 is, hereby granted.

AND IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that an attested copy Of-
this'qrder be sent to Alexander Weilford, Eséui;e, 1200
Mutual Building, Richmond, Virginia 23219; to the Honorable
J. Marshall Coleman, Attorney General of Virginia; Sup;eme .
Court Building, 1101 E=ast Broad Street, Richmond,'Virginia
23219; to Norman K. Marshall, Esquire, Assistant Attorney |
General of Virginia, Supreme Court Building, 1101 East -
Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219; and to the Commis-
sion's Division of Motor Carrier Compliance and Services.

IT IS FURTHEé ORDERED that an attested copy of this
order.bg sent to the'Comptroller‘of this Commiss;on who

shall provide the Comptroller of the Commonwealth of virginia



with a copy of this order and with the necessary documents

for refund.

SHANNON, Commissioner, aissenting:, Saction 58-629

of the Code of Virginia (1950) does not permit refund under

the facts presented.

Tzsta: /
C\erk of Stat° Corooranon

A Trus Copy e P / 3/6-'/"‘77

commtssion
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AT RICIMOND, MAY 30, 19890

APPLICA?YION OF
PALTTINORE WAMY LINES, IWC. T CARE 0L 17065

¥or refund of pmover full vead
tanes

-

Oviaion, Harwood, Commissioner:

v‘
e

on Avgust 2%, 1673, Baltimore Tank Lines, Tne. (appli

or carrvier) filed a petition with thig Conwission under
the provisions of Article 12 of Chanter 12 of witla 58

off the Codz of Vivginia (1050) (3L8-627, =t sexi.) s&aﬁing
refund of "excess' credits undesy th road tex. After an
ore tenus hearing and the cntry., on Septocher 10, 1979,

ol a&n order granting a reivnd in th anount o7 $1,867.43;
it was discovered that th:> procedural regquireaxents of §58-

629 had not been complicd with, as ihe Attornay General

("‘

of Virginia had not been given prop.r notice. The order

of Septembar 10, 1978, disposiung of the matter, was thercupon

nidar Aireotan

that fhe 20 toynsy Gasarasl of Vivainin ba

-~

given notice of & reschaduled hearing on Oztobear 5, 197%,

-
"

at which time we heard the matter ¢2 novo.

Phe evidonce consigtod of the tastinony of oae Staff

Y

vitness, a stipuwlation of facts, and two exbibita,



The applicant reguests a refund in th2 amount of

$1,967.43 which it claims as “"excess" road tax credits

L)

uncer Coda §558-5629. The Virginia road tax, in essenca,

~
9]

o
1)

impouses upor cariain wotor carriers a tax on the use of
the highways of the Commornw2alth amcunting to 1l cents
per gallon of fuel used in their oporations within Virginia.
The impact of this tax is modified, however, 5§ the terms
of Code §58-529. That section permits carriers to claim
a credit against their road tax liability, which credit
arises out of their purchase of motor fuel in Virginia .
and the payment of fuel taxss thereoﬁ. The credit is 9
cents per gallon of fuel purchased in Virginia for use'
either in Virginia or elsewhere, provided the attendant
tax on.gasoline or other motor fuel is paid to.the Commoh-
wealth.

Section 58-629 pefmité, under certain conditions,
on a quarterly basis, a carrier who accumulate$ more credits
under $§58-529 (from the purchase of fuel in Virginia) than
liability under 558-628, (from the use of fuel on the highways
of Virginia) to claim either a credit against future road |
cax liability or a cefund of its "excess" credits. 7The
applicant has requested a refudd.

Section 58-629 empowers the Commission to grant refunds

[ =4 — - 1 . Prapee i b LA T >
cf gsuch “exzoss" croedibts i f

3

o) licant so ra2guests within

cr
©

ap

I—-
1

the allowed time limit, and demonstrates that it ". . .



has paid to another state, under a lawful requirement of
such state a tax, similar in effect to the tax herein provided,
on the use or consumption in said state of gasoline or
other motor fuel purchased in Virginia, tolthe extent of
such payment to said other state, but in no case to exceed.
the rate of nine cents per gallon." |

There is no dispute that the petition was kimely filed.
The Commission Staff's audit of the coarrier's records resultea
in a Staff determination that no refund was warranted under
the statute, with which conclusion the carrier disagreed,
and a hearing was held pursuant to the terms of §58-629.

The central issues for decision in this'case are whether
the applicant paid a roéd tax to Maryland arising'from
the use, in Maryland, of two identified vehicles and whether
that tax is "similar in effect" to the Virginia road tax.

The evidence shows, and the Commission finds, that
the audit of the applicant's records identified the fuel
purchaséd in Virginia for which relief is sought and that
said fuel was used in two identified vehicles on identified
.mileage in Virginia and Maryland. All the fuel used in
these two vehicles wés purchased in Virginia; and the motor
fuel tax was paid thereon. About half of each vehicle's
mileage was accrued in Virginia, and about half was accrued
in daryliand. No otier nileage wag>acaxuea in Vizginia

by any other vehicle under the authority of the applicant.

11



These two vehicles, referred to by the applicant as “dedicated"
vehicles, constitute part of a largsr fleet operated by |
the carrier in laryland and elsevhare. Becavse of "excess"
fuel purchases in M2ryla:i:d orising fvom opsrations of the
rest of the carrier's fleat (unrelated to the movements
of tha two "dedicated” vehicles), the carrier accrued net
‘Maryland fuel tax credits in excess of its Naryiand road
tai liability.

It is stipulatad that in determining the carrier's
Maryland road tax liability, that state took into account
the operations of the two subject vehicles within Maryland
and charged the carrier with a moter fuel road tax egqual
to 9 cents per gallon of fuel used on the Maryland highways.
There is no evidence that any credit was allowed the carrier
by Maryland for the payment to Virginia of the Virginia
fuel tax on the fuei used by these two vehicles. A

The Commission Staff takes the position that the application
does not meet the requiremznt of 558-629, in that the éarrier’
did not pay a road tax to raryland, because the carrier's
Maryland fuel tax credits (resulting from its purchasés
of fuel in Maryland for use in the rest of its fleet and
payment of Maryland fuel tax thereon) exceeded its Matyland
road tax liability so as to result in a refund of its Maryland

Yewncess credits”.,

12



The Commission disagrees with the Staff's position.
The operation of only the two "dedicated" vehicles forms
the basis of this application, and the Staff's audit shows
that all the fuel for these two vehicles was bought in
Virginia and that their mileage was about equally divided
between Virginia and Marvland. There is no question that
Baltimore Tank Lines paid tax to Maryland on fual purchased
in Maryland for its other vehicles. Furthef, taryland,
in consideration of the mileage traveled by these vdedicated"
tractors in Maryland, charged the carrier with a road tax
of $1,967.43.
We agree with the applicant that the word "pay" as
"used in §58-629 indicates something more than the transfer
of cash. 1je believe that the Commission Staff's construction
of "payment" to Maryland to be too restrictive. Had the
carrier not been charged by Maryland with $l,9§7.43‘by
reasoﬁ of the movements of these two vehicles in that'étate
its refund from Marylénd would have increased by that amount.
The applicant can only be séid to have discharged an obiigation
énd paid this amount to Maryland for the use, in Maryland,
of fu=1 which was purchasad in Virgiﬁia.
The other issue for determination is whether the ﬁaryland
road tax is "similar in effect" to the Virginia road tax.“
rach state collizacis noror fuel road zaxess ou the basis

of gallons used within the taxing state, and each offers

13



an offsetting credit for fuel purchased within the taxing
state. Maryland imposes a motor fuel road tax in the amount
of 9 cents par gallon of fuel consumzd on its highways,
and the formulae used by Hafyland‘and Virginia for computing
miles per gallon are the same. It appears that Maryland
looks to fuel purchases'for payment of its road tax exactly
as Virginia does, and Maryland law contains provisions
for credits against the road tax where fuel purchases in
Maryland exceed usage therein. We hold that the Maryland
road tax is a tax "similar in effeét" to the Virginia rdad
tax for the purposes of §58-629 of the Code of Virginia.
The onlyAdifference may occur in the administrative application
of the tax.

Accordingly, the Commission finds and holds that the
applicant has satisfied the requirements of §58-62%9 of
the Code of Viréinia and is entitled to a refund in the
amount of $1,967.43,

BRADSHAW, Commissioner, concurs.

' SHANNON, Chairman, dissents.

14



COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Application of February 4, 1980
BALTDMORE TANK LINES, INC. ' CASE NO. L-765

For a refund of Motor Fuel Road Taxes.

SHANNON, Commissioner, dissenting:

By letter of aﬁplication dated Augusﬁ 25, 1978, filed with the dommissian
on August 29, 1978, Baltimore Tank Lines, Inc., of Glen Burnie, Maryland,
pursuant to § 58-629 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, seeks refund of motor
fuel road taxes covering the quarterly periods from January 1, 1976, through
September 30, 1977, in the aggregate amount of $2,964.83. After several con-
tinuances, the Commission entered an order on May 2, 1979, scheduling the
matter for hearing in its Courtroom in .Richmond, Virginia, on June 4, 1979.
Prior to the hearing, on May 30, 1979, a stipulation was en;ered into by Counsel
for the Aéblicant and Counsel for the Commission as follows:

1. The amount of the refund at issue, for which applications
were timely filed, is $1,967.43.

2. Baltimore Tank Lines's records for the time period in questiom -
have been audited by the Virginia Division of Motor Carrier
Taxation.

3. Fuel purchased in Virginia on which the refund is sought was
used in identified vehicles (the 'dedicated tractors") on
identified mileage in the States of Virginia and Maryland as
verified by the audits.

4. The State of Maryland charged Baltimore Tank Lines under its
Road Tax and Motor Carrier Statute with the mileage traveled
in Maryland by the dedicated tractors in computing Baltimore

"Tank Lines's motor fuel road  tax liability to Maryland for
the time period in question. .

5. The State of Maryland imposes a motor fuel road tax at the
rate of nine cents a gallon for mileage traveled on its

15



highways, and the formula used by the State of Mar&land
for computing miles per gallon is the same as the
formula used by the State of Virginia.

6. Total fuel purchases by Baltimore Tank Lines in the State
of Maryland for use by vehicles in Maryland and in
Pennsylvania resulted in excess fuel purchases by Baltimore
Tank Lines in the State of Maryland, and the payment of
refunds by the State of Maryland to Baltimore Tank Lines
on its overall operations.

As scheduled, the matter came on for hearing before the Commission on June L
1979. The following appearances were entered: Mr. Denton C. Roberts, as Coﬁnsel
for the Commission; Mr. Alexander Wellford, Counsel for the Petitioner, Baltimora .
Tank Lines, Inc. The Commission heard oral argument on the applicable law based
on the agreed stipulation of facts. On September 10, 1979, the Commiésion
entered an order, to which I dissented, granting the Petition of Baltimore Tank
Lines, Inc., for a refund in the amount of $1,967.43 in motor fuel road taxes.
Subsequently, it was brought to the Commission's attention ﬁhac its order of
September 10, 1979, granting the Applicant's petition was jurisdictionally defec-
tive since it had not been serve& on the Attorney Genmeral of Virginia as required
by § 58-629 of the Code. Thereupon, the Commission entered its Septeﬁber 18; 1979,
order setting aside its September 10, 1979, order and docketing the proceeding for
rehearing at 10:00 a.ﬁ. on October 5, 1979, directing that a copy of the order bé
served on the Attormey Genmeral of Virginia. . | |

The matter came on for hearing before the Commission on October 5, 1979,
at which time the Commission received testimony and heard arguments of Counsel..
The parties were afforded an opportunity to file legal memoranda on or before
October 22, 1979. Briefs have been filed.

Briefly, the pertinent facts are as follows: Baltimore is a transporter
of petroleum products. During the period in question, Baltimore owned

-2-
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approxirately forty-three diesel-powered tractors, two of which were used in
the transportation of petroleum products between Fairfax, Virginia, and points
in haryland. During the period for which refund is sought, the Baltimore Tank
" Lines's fleet operated intrastate in Maryland. Two tractors moved black oil
between Maryland and Pennsylvania, and one tractor was leased out on a perma=
nent lease to Eastern Motor Tramsport, Inc., of Richmond, Virginia. One tractor
was assigned to a movement of Gulf products between Faiffax, Virginia, and Gulf
customers in Maryland until February 7, 1977, at which time an additional tfactor
was added to the run. These are the two tractors which are referred to in the
stipulation of facts as "dedicated tractors.” The dedicated tractors were
fueled entirely from sources in Virginia and consumed approximately fifty percent
of that fuel in Maryland. The dedicated tractors were the only portions of the
fleet having Virginia miles under authority of Baltimore Tank Lines and the only
portion of the fleet concerned in the application for refund. The audit
conducted by.the then Division of Motor Carrier Taxation reveals.quarterli
credits in fuel taxes for the quarters ending March 31, ;976, June 30, 1976,
and September 30, 1976; however, the carrier's method of reporting its operatiéns
to Maryland indicated a fuel tax credit imn Maryland for the same quarters. The
Division of Motor Carrier Taxation took the position that since the carrier had
not paid an #dditional tax to>Maryland on the reports in quéstion, its request
for refund under § 58-629 of the Virginia Code must be denied. Thereupon, the
matter was brought before thé Commission in the instant proceeding.

Chapter 13, Title 58 of the Code of Virginia, §§ 58-686, et seq.,
establishes a scheme whereby all motor fuel is taxed at the rate of nine cents per

g2allon. This tax is levied on all fuel purchased at the pump, regardless of the

-3- 17



use to which the fuel will be put, and is collected by the Division of Motor
Vehicles. The State Corporation Comaission is not involved with the
adninistration of that chapter of the Code.

Article 12, Chapter 12 of Title 58 of the Code, §§ 58-627; et seq.,
provides for the taxation of motor carriers for their use of the highways of
the Commonwealth. The formula for determining the amount of this tax on road
usage is determined by the amount of fuel used within the state, rather thaé by
some other gauge - such as the number of miles traveled. The road use tax is
administered by the State Corporation Commission.

The only connection between these’two separate taxation schemes is that
a motor carrier can be relieved of part of his road use tax obligation to the
extent that he can establish the purchase of fuel in Virginia. The aﬁounts
paid in fuel tax can be used to offset the liability for the road use tax.

The amount of the road tax is equal to the sum of eleven cents'per galion for
fuel used in Virginia. Therefore, if a carrier bought. one hundred gallons of
fuel in Virginia and useé all one hundred gallons on Virginia's highways, he
would owe a road tax of $ll.00,_squec: to a credit of $9.00 for the payment
of the fuel tax. Had the carrier purchased one hundred and fifty gallons of
fuel in Virginia, but had used only one hundrad gallons on Virginia's highways,
he would have a fuel tax liability of $13.50 and a road use tax liability in
the amount of $11.00. He could, therefore, avoid payment of any additional
‘road use tax, because of the credit. for his fuel tax paid on his excess purchase
of fuel in Virginia. Moreover, pursuant to the provisions of § 58-629, the
carrier might even enjoy one of two other possible benefits from this $2.50
excess. He could be allowed a credit for road use tax for which he otherwise

-
18



would be liable for any of the four next succeeding quarters, provided ché
procedural requirements of the Section are met. Or, if he could show, pursuant
to the provisions of § 58-629, that he "... paid to another state under a
lawful requirement of such state a tax, similar in effect to tax hereiﬁ proviaed,‘
on the use or consumption in said state of gasoline or other motor fuel purchases
in Virginia, to the extent of such payment to said other state, but in no case
to exceed the rate of nine cents per gallon." (Emphasis added.)

It is important to bear‘in mind here that we are dealing with two distinct
schemes of taxation. The Legislature has provided that payment of.one tax may
be used to partially, or totally, offset the liability under the other tax.
The'Legislaﬁure has further provided that, in certain narrowly restrigted
circumstances, the carrier may be granted either a credit against fuﬁure road
taxes or cash refund for a portion of the émount he has paid in motor fuel taxes.

At this point it might be helbful to review the history of the administrative
policies of the Commission through its former Division of Motor Carrier Taxation
and its current Division of Motor Carrier Compliance and Services concerning
monetary refunds of excess credits under the Virginia Road Tax La§ since July 1,
1946. For many years there have been industry advocates urging an a&ministrative
policy éf refunding all excess credits resulting from the overpurchase of tax-
- paid motor fuel in Virginia, the argument being that the Commonwealth is entitled
.to only the absolute minimum in téx revenues. The present law and its concept
of a statutory formula for determination of tax liability was enacted subétantially
in its present form, effective July 1, 1942. Amenduments throughout the years have
broadened the coverage on property carriers, increased'the rate of taxation, and

recently repealed the tax on passenger carriers. The theory underlying the law

-5- 19



was to encourage or persuade motor carriers to purchase sufficient tax-paid
cotor fuel under the Fuel Tax Act of Virginia, commensurate with their usage
over the highways of the Coamonwz2aith. In the event chay.did not do so, they
were required to pay a road tax on each gallon for fuel used on Virginia
highways on which no tax had been paid under the Fuel Tax Act. For many
years, to be on the safe side, the carriers overpurchased in Virginia, thus
avoiding payments of the road tax in cash on shortages or underpurchases
since very few states had a similar law. The Virginia road fuel tax law
does not make it mandatory for a carrier to.purchase any tax-paid fﬁel in
Virginia. It is a persuasive statute which makes it advantageous for a carrier
to do so.

In 1946 the applicable.Code section (§ 4097£f, 1946 Cumulative Supp. to
the Virginia Code of 1942) read in part as follows: | |

“When the amount of the credit herein provided to which
any motor carrier is entitled for any quarter exceeds
the amount of the tax for which such carrier is liable
for the same quarter, such excess may under regulations
of the Commission be allowed as a credit on the tax for
-which such carrier would be otherwise liable for another .
quarter or quarters or upon application within ninety
days from the end of any quarter, duly verified and
presented, in accordance with regulations promulgated

by the Commission and supported by such evidence as may
be satisfactory to the Commission, such excess may be
refunded if it shall appear that the applicant has paid
to another State of the United States or the District

of Columbia under a lawful requirement 6f such jurisdic-
tion a tax, similar in effect to the tax herein provided,
on the use or consumption of the same gasoline without
this State, to the extent of such payment in such other
jurisdiction but in no case to exceed the rate per
gallon of the then current Virginia State gasoline tax.
Upon receipt of such application the Commission shall
proceed in the manner provided in section four hundred
eight of the Tax Code of Virginia, as amended, except
‘insofar as such section may be .inconsistent with some
provision hereof, to grant or deny the same, and whenever
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any refund is ordered it shall be paid out of the highway
maintenance and construction fund."

Today with amendments, the section reads in part as follows:
"... Whan the amount of the credit herein provided to which
any motor carrier is entitled for any quarter exceeds the
amount of the tax for which such carrier is liable for the
same quarter, such excess may under regulations of the
Commission be allowed as a credit on the tax for which such’
carrier would be otherwise liable for any of the four suc-
ceeding quarters; or upon application within one hundred and
eighty days from the end of any quarter, duly verified and
presented, in accordance with regulations promulgated by the
‘Commission and supported by such evidence as may be satis-
factory to the Commission, such excess may be refunded if it
shall appear that the applicant has paid to another state
under a lawful requirement of such state a tax, similar in
effect to the tax herein provided, on the use or consumption
in said state of gasoline or other motor fuel purchased in
Virginia, to the. extent of such payment to said other state,
but in no case to exceed the rate of nine cents per gallon."

From 1946 through 1949 only a few carriers applied for refunds. The

administrative interpretation of the statute applied by Commission personnel

charged with its administration was to the effect fhat the Legislature had

placed certain restrictions on the Commission in granting monetary refunds

of the tax already paid to the Commonwealth under the Fuel Tax Act of Virginia.

The administrative interpretation* of the statute and the construction given

~to it by the officials charged with its administration were as follpwé;

1. An applicant shall have paid to another state a
tax on the use of fuel in that state which was
not purchased there.

2. The other state must have a lawful requirement
for imposing such tax.

3. The tax must be similar in effect.

| *See SCC Chief Auditor A. S. Boatwright's January 28, 1952, Memorandum

to Field Auditors.



4. The tax must be on the use or consumption of the
sace gasoline without this State on which the
Virginia tax was paid.

The refund is linired to the extent of such
additional pavoent to the other state on fuel
purchased in Virgimia.

wn

6. The refund in no case could exceed the rate per
gallon of the then current gasoline tax of this
State.

7. All applications must be filed within the time
limitation prescribed by statute.

Insofar as I can determine from July 1, 1946, through July 31, 1978, there
was never any feeling on the part of those charged with administering the Road
Tax Law that § 58-629 permitted adninistrative discretion with regard to the
limitations icposed by the Legislature on refunds. Recognition of the Commission's
adherence to the statutory restricrions on refunds became more obvious as time
passed; historically, beginning with a memorandum on the "Enforcement of Road
Taxes" signed by Judges Hooker, King and Catterall on July 20, 1949, the
Commission direscted as follows: |

"Refunds.
The requirements for a refund are:
1. The excess credit must have accrued during the quarter
preceding the quarter in which application for refund
is presented.
2. A use tax must have been paid a sister state on the
same gasoline that was purchased ia this state. It ' .
is not enough that the taxpayer is entitled to a
Virginia credit and paid a North Carolina tax; he must
prove that the Virginia-taxed gasoline paid a North
Carolina tax. He must identify the gasoline that has
paid douyble taxes.
"If the Chief Accountant is satisfied that the taxpayer is entitled
to the refund he will notify the taxpayer that he need not appear on the

hearing of the application. If the Chief Accountant is doubtful whether
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the taxpayer is entitled to the refund or part of it he will notify the

taxpayer that he will have to appear on the hearing of the application

and support it with common law evidence."

The first carrier to protest the statutory limitations was Lemmon Tramspor:
Company, Incorporated. This occurred in 1950 when the Company contested the
tinme restriction as to the filing of applications for refund; however, the -
Commission, in a unanimous decision, denied the petition and in its opinion
reference was made to the restriction that a carrier had to pay a tax to amother

state, and that it must be on the same gasoline which was purchésed in Virginia

and used in that state. See Application of Lemmon Transport Company,

Incorpo;ated; For Refund of Road Taxes, Case No. 10056, 1950 Report.of the Stata

Corporation Commission, 207-211. This Case was appealed to the Supreme Court oi

Virginia in Lemmon Tramsport Co. v. Commonwealth, 192 Va. 416, 65 S.E.2d 537

(1951). In affirming the Commission's decision, the Court stated as follows on

Page 420:

"The refund dealt with in the statute is not a refund

of a road use tax paid the state of North Carolina, but is

" a refund of the gasoline tax paid to the State of Virginia,
and the relief here sought is by reason of a Virginia“
statute authorizing the refund under the terms and conditions
fixed therein. The Legislature provided how, under certain
terms and conditions, a motor carrier may secure a2 refund of
the gasoline tax paid, but in order to entitle the taxpayer
to the refund there must be a compliance with the terms and
conditions of the statute.”

Again in 1953 Lemmon Transport Company, Incorxporated filed an application
for refund of road taxes in Case No. 11363. The Commissibn,~with
Commissioner Hooker dissenting, denied that Application By its Order and Opinion

dated March 2, 1953. See 1953 Report of the State Corporation Commission, 76.

No appeal was taken from the decision of the Commission in that Case.
Administrative guidance'at the Division level in approving or disapproving
refunds was influenced to a large extent by the statements set out in

-9~
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Judze Catterall's majority opinion in the aforementioned Leccon Czse. The
pertinent language appears on page 77 and reads as follows:
"Tas rafuad 2rovisisns of § 58-629 ware added ro tha

statute in 1946 bzcause the General Assembly thought it
was just, equitable and fair to do so. MNow, if § 58-629
had not been thus amended to pzrmit refunds, nobody would
suggest that the State Corporation Commission could allow
refunds. It seems equally obvious that this Commission
has no jurisdiction to allow any refunds except those
specifically authorized by the legislature. Ve have no
authority to order the Coamptroller to refund taxzes law-
fully collected merely because we personally believe that
it would be just, equitable and fair to do so."

There was no other substantial activity with regard to refunds until 1966,
when a bill was introduced in the Virginia General Azcembly to amend § 58-629,
whereby all excess credits resulting from the overpurchase of tax-paid fuel
in Virginia would be refunded. This bill died ip Committee.

Although the foregoing recitacion of the history of the davelopments of
the refund attezpts under § 58-629 is leagthy, it illustrates that the Coxmis-
sion's thirty-three-year administrative policy on refunds has beea upheld
judicially, as well as legislatively and that the policy was based on purely
statutory requirements., The question is now: Can this long-standing
administrative interpretation and application oi § 58-629 be set aside by
administrative action of the Comiission? I think not.

Baltimore Tank Lines contends that for the two tractors which traveled
identified routes in Virginia and Maryland, it purchased all of its fuel in
Fairfax County, Virginia. And that the inescapable fact is that 3altimore Tanx

Lines has been taxed twenty cents per gallon (nine cents a gallon in Maryland Zor

fuel used on its highways, plus eleven cents per gallon for fuel used on Virgiaia
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highways) on the fuel purchased in Virginia and used in Maryland. It contends
that this is precisely the situation which § 58-629 envisions as calling for a
credit refund. The Commissioun's staff, on the other hand, contends, among
things, as follows:

A. That Baltimore here does not fall within the statute

because it has not paid to another state a tax on fuel

purchased in Virginia and used in another state.
B. That it would be unlawful for the Commission to allow

the carrier'to fragment its fleet for tax reporting

purposes so as to qualify itself for a refund under

Virginia Road Tax provisions.
The staff further contends that its denial of the application of Baltimore is
consistent with the history of the administration of this tax, arguing that
on Baltimore's entire operations it paid the State of Maryland no road use
taxes. In fact, its purchases of fuel im Maryland resulted in a situatiom
whereby the fuel taxes colleéted from the carrier by Maryland exceeded the
amount of the carrier's liability for the road use taxes owing in Maryland.
Under Maryland Law, the carrier did in fact receive a cash refund for the
excess Maryland credits and paid no road tax whatever. Baltimore did pay a
Maryland motor fuel tax. The amount Baltimore paid under the Maryland fuel
tax was properly used to offset a liability it might have had under the
Maryiand road use tax law. It is not disputed that the carrier's liability
for the Maryland road tax took into account the use in Maryland of fuel
purchased in Virginia; however, it is the staff's position that since the
carrier paid no Maryland road tax at all, it does not come within the terms of

-11-
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§ 58-629 of the Code of Virginia, which allows the State Corporation Commission
to grant a refund only if such carrier has paid to another state a road use tax
on fuel purchased in Virginia.

It is pertinent to note the language found in Michie's Jurisprudence,

Virginia and West Virginia, concerning the rule of practical construction. In

17 Michie's Jurisprudence, 344, the following appears, which I feel is pertinent

in this case to the long-standing administrative practice followed by the
Commission:
"§ 58. Generally. — The practical construction given to a

statute by public officials and acted upon by the people is not

only to be considered, but in cases of doubt will be regarded

as decisive. It is allowed the same effect as a course of

judicial decision. The legislature is presumed to be cognizant

of such construction, and, when long continued, in the absence

of legislation evincing a dissent, the courts will adopt that

construction.” (Citations omitted.) '
There is no acbiguity in § 58-629 and for thirty~three years the General Assembly
has totally acquiesced in the State Corporation Commission's administratjion of .
the law, notwithstanding attempts to have this Section amended. Both the language
and the long-standing administrative interpretation of the statute make ii clear
that a positive payment must be made to a sister state of a tax similar to the .
Virginia Road Use Tax (§ 58-628) before the "excess credits" provision of § 58-629
relating to refunds can be applied. No such payment has been made in the instant

case. I, therefore, conclude that it is'not within the province of the

Commission to grant a refund in the instant case.

-12-
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IN THE

SUPREME COURT OF VIRGINIA

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.,
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF VIRGINIA,

Appellant,
v. ‘ . ) Record No. 800817 .
) SCC Case No.. L-765
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION : .
~and
BAL'I‘J_ZMORE TANR LINES, INC.,
Appellees.

FROM THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

ASSTGNMENT OF ERROR

Comes now the Appeliant, Attorney General of Virginia,
pursuant - to Supreme Court Rule 5:18(i), gnd sﬁates the.following
Assignment of Error from ihe final order entered in this cause.
To wit: | | | |

. 1. The State Corporation Comuission erred, as a matter
of law and fact, in holding that Baltimore Tank Lines, Inc. met
- the conditioﬁs of and was entitléd to a refund of "excess" éredits -

for payment of Virginia motor fuel tax (§ 58-71l1l) as Such-cohdi; ,
‘tions for refund are defined and provided in § 58-629 of the

Code of Virginia (1950), as amended.
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- Respectfully submitted,

MARSHALL COLEMAN
Attorney General of Virginia

by ormes KDilpstaty

Counsel

Marshall Coleman
Attorney General of Virginia

Norman K. Marshall

John G. MacConnell

Kenneth W. Thorson
Assistant Attorneys General
P. O. Box 6-L

Richmond, Virginia 23282
(804) 257-8090

CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify that the original of the foregoing
was hand delivered to the Clerk of this Court and a true
copy was mailed, postage prepaid, to all counsel for the.

Appellees this ,e?fﬁ'ﬂay of June, 1980.
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
STATE CORFORATION COMMISSION .
RICHMOND . - -

October 11, 1977

REPORT OF AUDIT
T0: THE COMMISSION

Re: Baltimore Tank Lines, Inc. , ) e
P.0. Box 1028 ’ T T N
Glen Burnie, Macryland 21061 ) ) LT TEE .
Motor Fuel Road Tax - July 1, 1975 — September 30, 1976 SR

" Gentlemen:

' Attached is an exhibit of an audit completed by the undersigned. The
carrler was first contacted in November, 1976 but at that time the audit could .
not be completed due to additional information being needed in a lease out oper-f
ation. The additional information needed to complete the audlt.was recelved in
this office on August 30, 1977. -

The caphioned carrier is a transporter of petroleum products. During the .
period under audit the carrier owned approximately forty diesel powered tractors -
vhich were used in the transportation of the petroleum products from the Baltimore,
Maryland and Fairfax, Virginia areas to points in Maryland, District of Columbia
and Virginia. The lease out operation involves the picking up of petroleum prod-
ucts in the Manassas, Virginia area and delivering them to points in Northern
Virginia. The leased out operations involves the operations of one tractor and
are not included in the attached exhibit. . o

The carrier s tractors fuel primarily from bulk fuel sources in Haryland
but they also fuel, to a lesser extent, fron a bulk fuel tank at.Fairfax, Virgiaia.
The leased out tractor is fueled from bulk tank facilities in Naryland. :

The attached exhibit reveals quarterly credits in fuel tax and the carrier

has submitted timely applications for the refund of these credits under Section 58- .
629 of the Code of Virginia for the quarters ending March 31, 1976, June 30, 1976 an:
September 30, 1976. However, the carrier's wethod of reporting the above hauling
operations to Maryland indicates a fuel tax credit in Maryland for the same quarters
Since the carrier has not paid an additional tax to Maryland on the reports’ in ques-
tion the vequests for refund under Section 58-629 must be denied. I have informed
Mr. Gordon L. Westkamp, President that the refunds were not in ord-r on several occa
sions. . :

Resp ctfull) submltted

Lce E. Gilbert, Superv1sor of Refunds
DIVISIGN OF MOTOR CARRIER TAXATION

LEG/eee
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
STATE CORFORATIIN COMMI3SION
RICHMAND

November 2§, 1977

-~

REPORT OF AUDIT
TO: THE COMMLSSION

Re: Balcimore Tank LlnvsliTnc.
P. 0. Box 1028, Glen Burnie, Miaryland 21061
Motor Fuel Road Tax - Oct, 1, 1976 - Sept. 30, 1977

Gentlemen:

Please find attached an exhibit of an audit ccnpleted be:ween the
- dates -of November 10 and 15, 1977.

The carrier owns 43 tractors transporting petroleum products. The
bulk of this fleet (39 tractors} operates intrastate Maryland. - Two tractors
move black oil between Maryland and Pennsylvania. One tractor is leased out
on 2 permanent lease to FEastern Motor Transport, Inc., Richmond, Virginia,
During third quarter, 1977, one tractor was leased out to another carrier. One
tractor was assigned to a movement of Culf products between Fairfax, Virginia

and Gulf customers in Maryland until February 7, 1977; at that time an additicnal a

tractor was added to this run and collectively are referred to as the "dedicated
- tractors. " Co . , . .-
. X . . Y
The dedlcated tractors fuel entirely from sources in Vitginxa and
‘consune approximately 507 of the fuel in Maryland. This being the only portion
. of the fleet having Virginia miles under the authority of Baltimore Tank Lines,
Inc., the exhibit reflects only this fleet, :

The carrier having applied for refund under Section 58-629 of the Code
of Virginia for certain excess credits in each of the quarters under audit for
Virginia fuel burned over Maryland roads, Reports to that state were examined.

It was iound that the appropriate authority in Maryland determined that, under
the state's code, the carrier must file and be liable for all miles traveled by-
tracters owned by Baltimore Tank Lines, Inc. whether or not such equipment was .
under lease to and operating under the authority of another carrier, Since the
majority of the fleet fueled from sources in.Maryland, the carrier reports an
cxcess credit vwith that state each quarter. For the same rcason, Mator Fuel Road
Taxes are paid each quarter to the Sfate of Pennsylvania for cperaticns of the
black oil movements.

The requirement by the proper auihorities in Maryland that the carricer
p2y taxes upon their flcet fuel consumed while under lcase to other carriers
departs in principal from the meaning and intent of the Motor Fuel Road Tax lxs
of Virginia. Then, such taxes so paid are not similar in effect to those paid to
Virginia, within the meaning of Sec., 5R-629 of the Code of Virgiuia. Then, it
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. ~SOMMONWEALT!H OF VIRGINIA
STATE CORFORAT'ON COMMISSION
RICHMOND

2

is inciuzbent upon this auditor that applications for refund be denied.

While denial of the refunds request:.:d is based upon the dissimilarity
of - laws between two states, it is of interest to notc that the carrsier continually
-reports an excess credit to Naryland. Payments made to the State of Pennsylvania
ate rcfunded by Maryland, The last prior audit noted a refund denial based upon
the absence of payment to Maryland because of these excess credits.

Respectfully submitted,

’A/i{‘ﬁ)

4. W. lester, Field Represcntative
DIVISION OF MOTOR CARRIER TAXATION

JAL/pdn
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MEMC, RE §58-629

This section permits the refund of.excess credits:

A “;'. . if it shall ab}eér that the gpplicant'
has paid to another state under a lawful requirement
of such state a tax, similar in e¢ffect to the tar
herein provided, on the use or coansumption in said
state of gasoline or other motor fuel purchased in
Virginia, to the extent of such payment to said
other astate. . ."

There is no ambigu;ty in the‘languaée of the statute,
but it is bften hard and sometimes impossible to discover
which state the gasoline was used in. Sigce the tggpayer
applyipg for refund haé,the burden of proviqg his cia;n,
he will not be entitled to a refund unless he suéports_
his élaim.by satisfactory evideace. After pro#ing that
he bought in Virginia so much fuel that his-tix credits
éxceed his tax debits, he has to prove how much of his
Virginia-purchased fuel was taxed in some other state;

'This dehorandum is limited to a considerafiﬁn of the
. .possible methods of profing fhat fact.
. | The statute is ‘not a statute authorizing’the refund

of all excess credits; and it is not a statute authorizin§
‘a refund of all use taxes paid to other 5tates.. Yirginia
does not give back all payments of‘taxes on gasoline not
used in Virginia. Taxes on gasoline used in farm néchinery'
:'are refunded because the fuel is not uséd on Virginia
highways, but the legislature has nof followed.that'

principle when the gasoline is used on the highways of.

other states. The only tax relief granted by §58~629
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is relief againat taxes by two states on the use of the

same fuel, Consequently, the applicant for a refund has

to prove that "fuel purchased in Vigginia" wvas taxed in

some other state. Virginia could not be expected to refund
t#xes.on fuel purchased in 3ennsy1vania that.is used and
taxed in Maryland. The word "refund" means to pay back.
Virginia could not pay back to the taxpayer money that

the taxpayer had not paid Ig.Virginia.' Therefore, the
applicant for a refund has to prove that the money he
‘wants to get.back is money that he paid to Virginiaj

and that means money piid.on ngasoline or other mofbr

fuel purchased in Virginia."

1, Suppoese a carrier operates only in Virginia N

‘and North Carolina. He buys all his gasoline‘ip Yirginia
and none in North Carolina. That proves that all the |
gasoline he used in North Carolina vas purcﬁ;sed in
Virginia. | * .'

‘..g; Suppose a'carfief operates only in Virginia a£q
'North‘Carolina. He bujs'éome fuel in both States an& has
excess credits in Yirginia.. He would necessarily use
some of his prth Carolina fuei on the highways of Virginig.
Nevertheless, we will assume in the.taxpéyprfs favor that
only Virginia~purchasgd gas was used on V;fginia highﬁaygﬂ
and that all North Cafoliqa-purchdbgd gas ;as‘used on .
North Carolina highways.. | |
‘ 3. Sﬁppose'g carrier operates between Richmond and
New York; and buys two-thirds of his fuel in Yifginia

nzn ’
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and one-third in New Jersey. New York, New Jersey and
Pennsylvania have no tax "similar in effect to the tax
herein provided."” Maryland will impose its téx on fuel
used in Maryland, Since the Virginia and the New Jersey
gasoline is mixed in th;,éuel tank, it is impossible to
discover how much Virginia fuel has heen taxed in Maryland,
Nevertheless, in order to help the taxpayer with his burden
of proof we are willing to assume that Virginia gas was
consumed on the ﬁorth-bound trip through Maryland. If

' we assume that Virginia gas was used going north (on the
theory of first-in, firét.out) we will have to assume

that New Jersey gas was used goming back south‘through
Maryland, and Yirginia’could not refund taxes péid.to ,

New Jersey.

 R.T.C. .
September 20, 1961
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Stuart - Direct ' 9

ALBERT STUART, JR.,

a witness introduced on behalf of the Commonwealth,

being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. MINTER
Q ‘Mr. Stuart, for the record state your

full name and your position with the Commission, please?

A ~ Albert Stuart, Jr., Director of the

Commission's Division of Motor Carrier Compliance and

Services.
Q Have your duties in the past involved

the administration of the collection and refund of the.

Virginia road tax?

A : Yes, sir.

Q Are you familiar with the facts in the

present application?

A I believe I am, sir..

Q Again, for the record, could you outline

very briefly your understanding of the facts, and the

issue or issues which are presented.

A My understanding of the case is that the

GARRETT J. WALSH, JR. - COURT REPORTER 3,
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Baltimore Tank Lines has made -- application of refund ‘
for certain excsss credits.

In doing so, applications were filed in
accordance with the statute. The Division was required
to make an audit examination of the account. As a
result of the audit, it was called to my attention that
the carrier, although he had indicated certain amounts
as being paid to the State of Maryland, in particular

for operations in that State, that no payments had been

made to Maryland on fuel purchased in excess in Virginia.

The information that I received was that,

in fact, the carrier had purchased tax paid fuel in

Maryland to the extent that he had purchased in excess
in that State, and had received a monetary refund from

Maryland. In view of this, I rejected an application

or the applications as filed because we had never before

considered in the absence of an actual payment for undexr-

purchasing in the State, that any refund was permissible
under the Virginia statutes, that had certain restrictive
provisions that required a payment, and required that the

other State tax the carrier on the excess fuel purchased

in Virginia.

GARRETT J. WALSH, JR. - COURT REPORTER 3¢
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Stuart - Direct 11
In my opinion, this condition did not

exist, and consequentlyélgdenied the refunds.

Q Mrx. %tuart -
A And I would like to add also, excuse me,

that in denying refunds, I was not the final answer to

it, since Section 58-629 providés that if the Applicant
doesn't agree to the action by the Division, that he is
entitled as a matter of right, to have a hearing before
the Commission. That carrier as well as all others,

when I deny a refund in'ghgle or in part, is advised he

can appear before the Commission. .
Q Mr. Stuart, primarily for clarification,
you referred to payments and refunds. Particularly in

the State of Maryland. " As I understand it, you are

really talking about, perhaps, two forms of taxes. You

are talking about a fuel tax, and you are talking about

a road tax.
Will you explain the relationship of

those two, and relate it gain to what waslpaid, and what
was refunded in Maryland, as you understand it?

A Well, presumably Maryland, as I understand

it, has a similiar tax law to Virginia'’s, and it is

GARRETT J. WALSH, JR. - COURT REPORTER 37
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probably more .illustrative to explain Virginia's view,

or the view that has been in effect since the original

tax statute came into being.

The original statute was referred to

and thought of and administered as being a persuasive

statute. Persuaded a carrier to buy sufficient tax-paid

fuel in this State commensurate with his operations.

Tax-paid fuel being fuel that is taxed under the Fuel

Tax Act of Virginia.

. If a carrier purchased sufficient fuel,

of which the tax was paid under the Fuel Tax'Act,.he was

allowed credit for it under the road tax. And unless

the carrier purchased insufficient amounts of fuel, it
was never considered that he was paying road taxes. He
had complied with the road tax law, but road taxes came

into being only when they were monetary, or cash payments

received by the State.

Q Mr. Stuart, let me interrupt you just-a

~moment. Is your office concerned at all with the

payment of the fuel tax, or the road tax?

A We are concerned with the road tax and

the fuel tax only to the extent that in any audit procedure -

GARRETT J. WALSH, JR. - COURT REPORTER 38
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of refunding excess credits, we are refunding taxes

collected by another agency, namely the Division of

‘Motor Vehicles.

The refunds under the road tax are refunds

of the fuel tax, not road taxes. The Commission's

collection process of money that is collected, no refunds

are refunded out of that source. It is refunded out of

éollections made by the Division of Motor Vehicles on
fuel sold in Virginia on which the tax was imposed, when
it was imported into the State.

Q Mr. Stuart, will you explain the
statutory scheme? How is the road tax determined in

Virginia?
A The road tax has a statutory formula that

basically states that the carrier is liable for a road
tax in proportion to the -- to his total use of fuel

-~ as his Virginia miles pass to his total operation,
within and without Virginia. The primary consideration
is to get to a percentage. What percentage of your

operations or of the motor carrier is on Virginia highways,

And the statute assumes that that percentage is the

same relationship to miles as it is to total fuel.

The percentages applied -- lets say for example fifty

GARRETT J. WALSH, JR. - COURT REPORTER
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Stuart - Direct 14
percent of mileage in Virginia, and the statute assumes

that fifty percent of fuel used in an entire operation

.is used on Virginia highways. Once that has been

determined, the amount of fuel used, sets up a liability.

‘That liability is credited with all fuel that is purchased

in the State, and if it is purchased in excess, then
the carrier has excess credits. If it is under-purchased,
he owes the road tax, and pays directly to the

Commission.

- COMMISSIONER SHANNON: How much is the

road tax?
WITNESS STUART: The road tax is now

eleven cents a gallon. It is referred to
quite often as a surtax differential, but it

is not a surtax. It is a tax differential;

The road tax is at the rate of eleven cents

per gallon. The fuel tax on fuel that goes

into any motor vehicle is nine cents. So there

is a liability generated at the rate of eleven
cents a gallon, and a credit offsetting at

nine cents a gallon.

And, of course, excess purchases can

GARRETT J. WALSH, JR. - COURT REPORTER 4¢
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Stuart - Direct 15
offset that differential.
Q Mr. Stuatt, again for primarily
ciarification, would this be a correct statement:v That .

the road tax is determined at the rate of eleven cents
per mile, based on the gallonage of gasoline used in
Virginia, purchased in Virginia?

A It is, yes, sir. The whole tax is --

the statute is known as a rw-ad tax, calculated dn
fuel used. The road tax doesn't use the term, technically,

motor fuel road tax. It is a road tax calculated on -

fuel used.

Q Well, then, when you speak of -a refund

in a foreign state,.which entitles, or could entitle

- a carrier to a refund in Virginia, are you speaking of’

a refund of the road tax in the foreign state?

A You mean as far as refunding of Virginia -

excess?

Q 'That'is correct. In other words, in
order to be eligible for a refund in Virxginia, what type
of payment must be made in the foreign state? 1Is it a

road tax or a fuel tax that we are talking about?

A Well, in the foreign state, in my view,

is that if it is a law similar to Virginia, and what has

" 41
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existed in Virginia, he -- that he is only paying a
a road tax whern he 1is paving that state or failure

to purchase in that State. If he is getting credits

for purchasing in the foreign state, and having paid
their tax under their fuel tax act}'then the‘element,',

or the question of road tax, hasn't come into being.

Well, now, again I call ydur'attention
to that portion of 58-629 which sets -- which appears

to set up the refund provision. When it aépears that

the Applicant has paid to another state, under a lawful
requirement of such state a tax similar in effect to the
tax herein provided.

Now, when we are speaking of a tax
similar to the herein provided, we are speaking about
payment in the foreian ijurisdiction of a road taxlmis
that correct?

‘A . Yes, sir.
Q So then in order to be eligible’under'

our statute as administered by your Division, they would

.have to pay a road tax on fuel purchased in Virginia.

In other words, a tax would have been paid twice. A

road tax would have been paid.twice on the same fuel,

is that correct?

A - That is correct. '

(5
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Q Do you understand the facts of this case

to establish that the Applicant did, in fact, pay a road

tax on the same gallonage purchased in Virginia? Paid

it both iﬁ Virginia and Maryland?
A I do not consider £hat‘heApaid.xaryland
a road tax on.excess purchases in Virginia.
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: He paid Maryland

the tax he purchased in fuel --

WITNESS STUART: Purchased in fuel. And

as a matter of fact, excess purchasing of fuel,

and he received a refund from Maryland for those

excesses in that State.

BY MR. MINTER (Continuing)

Q It is not the payment of the fuel tax
in Maryland that is the criteria in determining refund
under our statute, is that correct?

A That is my view, sir.

Q Is it your view, or is it that is what
the statute says?

A That is what I feel the statute séys.

Q Mr. Stuart, how o0ld is the statute
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I believe it was probably around 1956 the statute was

amended saying that if the Applicant agreed to the

~amount, that no hsaring was necessary. At the same

time, it affords him the opportunity if there was.any'
disagreament, that the hearing shall be had.
As to the'so—called_:estriétions in

making refunds, they have not changed, and they are

as they were written in the original section in 1946. .

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Is ityur -
intexpretation of the statute, Mr. Sﬁuart;

that an applicant for refund has to prove .

that the fuel purchased in Virginia, for

example, has been taxed in another state?

WITNESS STUART: That has been our
administrative policy. Requiring that before

approving any refund. It has to be the éame~

fuel which was purchased in excess in

Virginia, and taxed in the other State.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Suppose you had
‘a situation where you had a carrier operating

in Virginia and North Carolina, and they were

the only two States in which he operated. He
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Stuart - Direct 20
bought all of his fuel in North Carolina. |
Well, lets say he bought all his fuel in
Virginia, and he 6perated half his mileage
in Carolina. Then you would refund half of

the road tax.

WITNESS STUART: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Suppose you had
a third State involved? How would you treat
it?

WITNESS STUART: Well, to illustrate.

We have some very specific cases at one time

where carriers in Virginia would purchase

greatly in excess. They‘would operate through

Maryland and northward.Administrative Directive
that I received that even though the excess |
amounted to great amounté of gallons and dollars
and cents, but if the State of Maryland, as an
example, taxed the carrier on the norxrthbound

trip, then it was perfectly obvious that Virginia

fuel was being taxed in Maryland. If the carrier

went into New England and it finished or used

all of the fuel that he bought in Virginia, and
fueled in New England and came southward, over

the same route, and Maryland taxed him on the

' - 45
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southbound trip, we never would permit that
portion of the refund to be made, under the
theory tﬁat it was not Virginia fuel being
'taxed in Maryland.

And that he did not comply with the
provisions of 58-629. And that became what
has been referred to and known generally
throughout the industry as the identity

requirement of fuel.

And my Division and I have been
guided by a memorandum written by the Commission
in 1961, saying that it .had to be an inventory

approach to identify that it was Virginia fuel

actually being taxed in the other State, and
in the absence of identity, no refund was ever

to be made, and none has been to date.

BY MR. MINTER (Continuing)
Q Mr. Stuart, again, for clarification,
that is not an issue in this particular case, is it?

There is no question of identifying fuel or the

inventory concept. Is this here not merely a question.

of whether or not a tax was paid? A road tax was paid

in Maryland on both -- it was paid both in Maryland and

in Virginia on the same fuel?
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COMMISSIONER BRADSHAﬁ:< Take Judge
Shannon's question on the reverse. If you’
bought all your fuel in Carolina, and ran
fifty percent of your miles in Virginia,

what would be the approach?

WITNESS STUART: Well, our approach
here would be that Virginia's law was not
compulséry. My view is Virginia's law
wouldn't be. compulsory for the carrier to.
buy any here. It gets back to the persuasive
feature.

The computation of liability to
Virginia would be that he wouid have had

no credits in Virginia and that he would pay

eleven cents a gallon on the number of gailons
used in his Virginia operation. We would

then make a colLectlon that would be road taxes.
It would be monles not collected by the DlVlSlon

of Motor Vehicles under the Fuel Tax side. It

would be pure road tax.

'COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Although there

would be a nine cent element of fuel tax.

WITNESS STUART: Only as a criteria,

in that the road tax statute is calculated on
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fuel used at a rate per gallon of the existing

tax in Virginia.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: In the é;se,'

Mr. Stuart, fuel -- it was stipulated here, I

think Stipulation 3 is fuel purchased in Vi:ginia .

in which refund is sought, was used in identified

vehicles. The dedicated tractors. You have

ascertained they did purchase fuel in Virginia.

_ WITNESS STUART: According to my auditors
finding; they did purchase fuel. They did use

it in Maryland.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON : That is right. Anﬂ..

it is this difference, the fuel that was actually

used in Virginia -- well, wasn't the fuel used

. in Maryland and Pennsylvania, or do you know.

WITNESS STUART: #As I understand it,

it is a rather unusual operation. The carrier

‘has certain vehicles that generated a credit in

Virginia. Other States are very permissive in

permitting a lessor or a lessee to report road

taxX., It is an elective thing which the carrier

can decide which way they want to go, and in

this particular case, Maryland would permit the
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Stuart - Direct | 26
inclusion of lessee operatiqps in a lessor
tax report.
Pennsylvania was the third State
involved in this operation. I have been told
-~ I understand from our auditor the operation
that went into Pennsylvania was not performed

by Baltimore Tank Lines. They had no authority

to perform it, but they leased the operation

to a carrier holding a certificate to do so.
But for tax purposes Maryland and Pennsylvania

permitted them to include them in their

operations to those states.
The actual shortfall, as I see it,
occurred in Pennsylvania. The carrier undoubtedly

received money back from Maryland to partially

pay its Pennsylvania tax. The remaining part

of the shortfall represents money that was

excess in Virginia. But my view is that

Virginia can't refund anything based on what

happened in Pennyslvania merely because the

carrier reported an operation that he didn't
even perform. It wouldn't be similar to Virginia
or Federal law in saying -- you are not even the

operator,
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Let me ask you |
a theoretical question. Suppose Baltimore Tank:
Line had authority to operate in Pennsylvania
under its own name and its own right. Would -

that have made anj difference?

WITNESS STUART: I don't think that would>
have made any difference, because the existing
situation in Maryland -~ in my view, Maryland
was not taxing the excess purchases in Virginia,
and I don't feel that a State can make refunds

of his fuel tax and in any sense of the word

take the position that they are collecting road
tax on excess purchases in some other state.
So when ‘we have a situation where

Maryland collected the fuel tax on all of our

fuel and thnen some, I don't think that that
state was imposing any tax on the excess in

Virginia, whatever the operational set—up'was.

~COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Are the tax
laws in Maryland and Pennsylvénia simiiar?

WITNESS STUART: It is very difficult
to answer that,Judge. Nearly every state --

Virginia was the first state to have a road tax

based on fuel used, and virtually every state
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BY MR. MINTER (Continuing)

o] Mr. Stuart, I hate to keep going back |
to the same basic issue, but I can't help but cénclude
that we are some times, perhaps, drifting from the real

issue here. The problem again —— am I correct in saying

the problem is not in identifying the fuel, or in

determining the gallongage purchased, but rather was a

road tax paid in Maryland on gasoline purchased in

Virginia. Is that the issue?

A - That is the issue..
Q And again, to your understanding, was

any road tax paid in Maryland on the fuel paid in

Virginia?
A It was not, to my understanding.
Q And is that disputed as far as you are

aware by anybody? Is that issue in dispute to the best -
of your knowledge?

A I assume that that is thé‘basis‘ofAthis
case by Baltimore Tank Lines.

Q Tell me this, sir. Has ﬁhat issﬁe over
whether or not you could get a refund only if you paid
a road tax on the same fuel, has that issue arisen before
here, before the Commission? .

A Specifically as to whether payment was

made, that question has not.

1
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Q Tall me this,'sir. Has any effort
been made to amend 58-629 so as to eliminate.thé requiremené
a road tax bg paid in a foreign state before a refund
could bé.obtained in Virginia? .
A Yes. It was made in the 1966 legislature.
And I take it it was not adopted.

A No, sir. It was killed in'Committee.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Just for the
record, would you explain what -- I heard part.
of Mr. Minter's question, but I didn't hear

the whole question.

WITNESS STUART: That was an amepdment
that was introduced by the sellers of fuel -
in Virginia in 1966. It eliﬁinated the
restricted provisions that were contained, and.;
apparently contained iﬁ 58-629, and iﬁ:merely
-;aid: and supported By such.evidence aé nay
be satisfactory-to the Commiésion, such
excess may be refundéd. Period.” -

It was thoughf at that time, and
perfectly obvious, that the amendment woqld have
made all excess purchéses réfunded. The word -
has been.p;ad_auite,freqnent1¥4“and even on ouxr
ta# re}ﬁnds, as mere excesses. I1f that‘amend~

ment had gone through, all excess credits would
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have bean refunad, and Lhere vould have beep Y

no restrictions as to hav1ng had to use this -

fuel in another stace, or to pay another state,

or the othar state having to have a law similar. .

in effect.’

: COMMISSIQNER SHANNON: It would just be

a natter of blanket refund of all excésé'bredits.'N

What you.don't do. ncw.
| WITNESS STUART: That was in 1966 .
proposad amnndment .

~ COMMISSIONER SHANNON:® I see, 1

. COMMISSIONER HARWOOD* Did that go  before
Roads or Plpgnce°' . . s.fwf ";;.fvfff' fr

w::mmss STUART: ' It went before the Roads .

COMMISSTONER BRA.DSHAW- ' ‘How'{-ai'd{ I vote-
WI“V‘S: STUART.- Oh, 1t was 1n the Senat
| COM’M_ISSIONER BRADSHAW: That is .right. -

'WITNESS STUART. And it lost sixteen to

one. Patron voted for it.

BY MR. MINTER (Continuing)

Q Have you endeavored to determine what

w1
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CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. MARSHALL

Q Mr. Stuart, did your audit reveal that

a tax was paid to Maryland upon the fuel to wnich this-

excess credit is being -- was generated?
A No, in my view.
Q What do you mean by, 'No, in your view?'

Did somebody write a check?
A Nobody wrote any check. Nobody made any

monetary payment to the State of Maryland.

Q -~ No money changed hands between Baltimore ;‘
Tank Lines and the State of Maryland? |

A - In Maryland's administr&tion of its'
road tax law.

Q So it is your view, then, that £hé
language of the statute has not been cbmplied with té the
extent that it says: An excess may be refundeé ... to
the extent of such. payment to sai& other State.

There was no cash payment made.by

Baltimore Tank Lines to the State of Maryland.v

A It was not according to my information.
Q It was a bookkeeping entry?
A It was a bookkeeping entry so far as

credits toward any liability in Maryland were offset by
the payment of tax under the Maryland’'s fuel tax act

on gallons purchased in that State.
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Stuart - Cross 42‘
Q Did your audit reveal that Baltimore Tank
Lines paid a tax in Maryland on fuel purchased in
Virginia?

MR. WELLFORD: He has already answered.-
this question, and he answered it, 'no' in his
view. |

MR. MARSHALL: I am asking for a
clarification, 'no, in your view'. That seems
like a qualification. ‘What do you mean by,

'no in your'view.' Was a check Written, did money
change hands?

WITNESS STUART: No money was paid.

BY MR. MARSHALL (Continuing)

Q Baltimore Tank Line, in effect, received

a credit in Maryland as opposed to making any payment

whatsoever.
A Correct. .
MR. MARSHALL: I don't héve any more
queétions.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Wellford?
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Stuart - Cross 43

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. WELLFORD

Q‘ You dén't mean, Mr. Stuart, that it
received a‘éredit concefning this Virginia fuel in the
miles traveled in Maryland in whicﬁ.this Virginia fuel
was used, do .you? | |

A I mean to say it is my'understaﬁding

that Baltimore Tank Line received a credit in Maryland for

a tax it paid on its Maryland Fuel Tax Act.

Q Because of mileage traveled in Pennsylvania
by other vehicles, is that correct?

A No. They received the credit for the
overall purchase of fuel in Maryland. I don't think that
the computation to Maryhnd, that the question of

Pennsylvania entered into it.

Q " All right. We have stipulated --

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Let me clarify
one thing. That credit came about as a result
of purchasing more fuel than was ﬁecessary to
cover its mileage, and operation in Maryland.

WITNESS STUART: And you are only
considering Maryland. You are not consideriné

' Virginia.

WITNESS STUART: Maryland.
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Stuart - Cross 44

BY MR. WELLFORD (Continuing)

Q But that was by vehicles that traveled
in Marxvland and Pennsylvania, isn't that correct?

A Both, I assume.

Q There is no cuestion as to the accuracy
of these stipulations so far as the fuel purchased in
Virginia, is there?

A | Not to my knowledge.

MR. WELLFORD: That is all the questions

I have. |

COMMISSTIONER SHANNON: All right.
MR. WELLFORD: Excuse me, there is one

more.

BY MR. WELLFORD (Continuing)

Q There is a memorandum which was written
by Judge Catterall, which Mr. Stuart made reference;
Whether or not that should be a part of this reco?d, or

whether the Commission takes judicial notice of this --

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: If you desire
to make it for the record, we can do so. ‘
MR. WELLFORD: I would think it would
be helpful, since he has testified --
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: What is the date

of that? Judge Catterall wrote and sent so many
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get a credit.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: You mean
Maxyland.

MR. WELLFORD: - I mean Maryland, beg vour
pardon, to get a credit. If it had not charged
Baltimoie.Tank Lines with this mileage involving .
the Virginia fuel, then it would have gotten a
credit of another nineteen hundred dollars, the
amount we are applying'fof here.

This is ali we are talking aboutJWhen we
are talking abou; did Baltimore Tank Lines pay
Marylénd. It did not pay it in caéhq as Mr.
Marshall pointed out. No money changed hands.

Baltimore Tank. Lines was charged wifh the

liability. Now, if the Commonwealth is going back

to the barter system, maybe it wasn't paid. But
any sort of sensible accounting procedures, there

was a payment made by Baltimore Tank Lines on

thié fuel. It paid eleven cents to Virginia,
then it paid nine cents to Mafyland, and it cost
wenty cents tak. |

Now, where you talk about road tax and
fuel tax, and I must confessvthat I understood
practically nothing said about these theorial
differences.

We are talking about a road tax imposed
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MR. MINTER: I think it would be,

perhaps, essential to make a few observations

here. I think we. are mixing up camels and
giraffes here on at least two or three different
occasions.

First of all, we are talking about a

carrier. We are not talking about two trucks.
The statute applies to a carrier operation. It
is not broken down‘on a truck-by-truck basis. |
It so happens here that the Applicant had two':
trucks which supposedly were dedicating fifty

percent of their time in Virginia,‘qnd fifty

percent in Maryland.

Supposedly all of the gasoline was
‘bought in Virginia. They did not buy any
gasoline for those two trucks outside of |
Virginia. However, the operation of the

Applicant here in Maryland involved two taxes,
the same as it does in Virginia. It involves

a fuel tax which is paid when you go to the pump
and buy the fuel. It involves the road tax,

which is measured by the fuel purchase used

in that state. Essentially; the same formula

" that Virginia follows. I think the rate is
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different, but that is it. 1In Virginia you have
an eleven cent road tax. You have a nine cent

fuel tax. When you buy fuel in Virginia, it is

credited to your road tax.

If you were operating exclusively in-
Virginia, you would always owe some road tax
because it is greater than the fuel tax. And
as the witness has pointed out, the whole scheme
was set up to give an incentive to these inter-
state truckers to purchase an adequate amount
of fuel in Virginia, which helps not only the
coffers in the State, but also helps the gasoline
supplier.

So lets make sure that we understand here
we are talking sbout only one tax here. A road
tax. And as far -- the statute, as farlas the
Staff is concerned, very explicitly states that
you get a credit on your road tax for gas -- for
a road tax paid outside Virginia on the same
fuel. |

Noﬁ, the simple truth of the matter is
in Maryland, as I understand the'facts, no road
tax was paid on any operation by this Applicant.
The reason being they purchased more gasoline,
or more fuel, than was necessary to cover the

liability for the road tax.
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The administration -- I don't want
to call it interpretation, because I think
the statute is so obvious it really isn't an
interpretation, the application of the statute
has been unchanged since 1946. That is a period
of about thirty-three years.

It would appear that having gone before

the General Assembly on some five times for

amendment, that if there was any question as to .

the proprietv or legality that has been given the

interpretation of the application that has been

given by the Commission, it éertain;y would have

been addressed at some point in time. I believe
it was amended '46, '52, '56, '60, and '72.

You have one other vary‘critical problem
here. And that is, if you try to ignore the
requirement that they pay a tax on certain

gallonage in the foreign state, then you have no

measuring stick by which to determine the refund
in Virginia. And the reason is very obvious.
Because your r=fund can be made only to the
extent of such payment to said other State, Sut
in no case to exceed the rate of nine cents pér

1

gallon.

‘ : 61
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If you don't pay a tax in the foreign
State,Ayou ain't got no galions. If you
don't have any gallons, you got no way to
measure it.
It would be an administrative impossibility
to apply this statute unless you actually had paid

a tax on a number, whatever it may be, of gallons
purchased outside of Virginia.

This record shows that no tax was paid.
No road tax was paid in Maryland; Without some
payment of some road tax.in Mafyland, you never
even cet the -- to the issue of co-mingling or
identification. The issue of identification is

totally irrelevant to this case.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Are you saying,
Mr. Minter, that it has to be a cash payment

to Maryland?

MR. MINTER: Your Honor, you speak of’

'cash.' There has to be a payment. You have

_to identify a certain number of gallons. Whether

it is paid by cash,; or barter, or check or whatevex

is immaterial. But a tax has to be assessed
on a given gallonage, which has to be paid or

offset in some way.
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COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: I thcught you
just told me identification was irrelevant?

MR; MINTER: Identification is
irrelevanc, Jadge; as far as the gasoline is
concerned. The question of identification comes
up when you are trying to determine whether the
road tax paid in Maryland was paid on fuel
bought in Virginia. But no road tax was paid
in Maryland, ergo, there is no issue or question
over whether it was bought in Maryland or

Saskatchewan. It is totally immaterial.

COMMISSIONER HARWOOD: If the Virginia
statute read fuel tax paid in Maryland, then

you would agree they were entitled to a'refund.

MR. MINTER: Your Honor, if they had
paid a gross receipts -— I keep being locked
up on the ﬁF&P Case -~ if they had paid a road
tax in Maryland, then your next qﬁestion would
be: Was that tax paid on gasoline or fuel
idenfiably pﬁrchased in Virginia? ©Now, that is
a burden, and I would agree with counsel that

that is a burden.

Unfortunately, it is not the problem

in this case.
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COMMISSIONER HARWOOD: Suppose

Marylané or any other jurisdiction.does not

have, quote, a road tax at all. Identifiable

as that. It doesn't call it that. It calls it
fuel tax, or gallonage tax, or something ccher
than the word, 'road.' But it has the same
effect. And an overpurchaser in Virginia would
then be entitled to no credit. More fuel was
used in Virginia, but because the State doesn't

have something called specifically a road tax.

MR. MINTER: Oh, no. That has
nothing to do with this. The stature, Your
Honor, says that if it is similar in effect.

COMMISSIONER HARWOOD: Does it say
a road tax similar in effect, or just é tax
similar in effect?

MR. MINTER: You are dealing in an

article here that is dealing exclusively with
the road tax. It says how yéu determine it,
who pays, and this type of thing. So it is

obvious from the content that similar in effect

means similar in effect to our road tax, and

our road tax is determined by a fuel tax.

A clear distinction is made between the two.
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